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City of Lynchburg 
Procurement Division 
900 Church Street 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24504 
Telephone No.: (434) 455-3970 
Fax No.: (434) 845-0711                     
                                                    Addendum for Invitation for Bids 

Storage Building at Former Allen Morrison Site 
 

14-902 
Date: 4/30/14 
From: Lisa Moss, Buyer VCA 
RE: Addendum No.  1 
 
This Addendum supplements and amends the original Plans and Specifications and shall be taken into 
account in preparing proposals and shall become a part of the Contract Documents. The Bidder shall indicate 
receipt of this Addendum and all previously issued Addenda on the Bid Form.   
 

1. Attached is the addendum as prepared and provided by Architectural Partners. 
2. Attached below is the Pre Bid Meeting Agenda as prepared by Architectural Partners.  
3. Attached below is the Pre Bid Vendor Attendance Record. 
 

 

Company Name:    Address:    Date:   

Authorized Signature:      Title:      

Print Name:     Telephone No.:    

Fax No.:   



 

ADDENDUM No 1 
April 29, 2014 

 
City of Lynchburg 
Storage Building at Former Allen Morrison Site 
 
Architectural Partners 

 
Architect/Owner Clarifications  

1. The following bonds for this project are no long required: Bid, Performance, 
Labor and Material Payment.  

2. Please note that there are 6 window units on the North Elevation. The drawing 
shows 5 window units which is incorrect. 

3. North Elevation- ALL the glass panes at the north elevation (broken- missing-
unbroken) shall be removed and replaced with 0.60 inch aluminum sheet metal 
panel and glazed in the same manner as replacement glass. Paint the panels the 
same color as the frame. 

Bidders Questions 

 Is there lead paint/primer on the bar joists? 
o Assume that that all paint is lead based. 

 The interior notes call for abrasive blasting of steel. Detail 3 Section at Parapet 
calls for Soda Blasting of existing steel.  Can sand be used as the abrasive in place 
of soda? 

o Yes. 
 Detail 5 Detail at Coping shows the counter flashing under the roof side lip side 

of the T.C. Coping.  Does this mean that all T.C. Coping pieces will need to be 
removed & replaced to accommodate? 

o No- removal of roof plies will allow for the new metal flashing to be 
slide under the existing terra cotta coping without removal. 

 Steel Decking : [05-3100] Sections 1.03 B and 1.04 A .  
    Question: Do we need to have in our price the cost of a Structural Engineer to 
design and inspect roof deck?  

 Yes-Per Section 05-3100 para 1.04 A  
 

 Windows: The asbestos glazing and repair of windows.  
Question: Do we remove all the asbestos glazing or only the windows that need 
repairing. Also there is one steel window sash missing, do we need to figure a 
new window to replace?  
 Only remove loose glazing putty for repair and replacement. All putty 

tight to frame to remain. Insert aluminum sheet metal for 
replacement of missing sash. Use 0.125 inch aluminum sheet, attached 
with rivets or stainless steel sheet metal screws. Apply polyurethane 
sealant bead- prep and paint with frame. 
 

 Cleaning Steel:  
Question: What are the acceptable methods that can be utilized to clean the  
steel?  

o Sand or soda blast. 



 
 Clean Concrete Floor:  

    Question: To what extent do you want the floor cleaned?  
o Power wash with degreaser solution.  

 
o Garage Doors:  

Question: The spec do not call for windows but the plans show windows,     
do you want windows?  

o Yes – 3 view panels per door as shown on 2/A1.2. 
 

 After the exterior caulk around the window frames has been removed by 
the abatement contractor will the windows be re-caulked?  Should this 
value be in the base bid or Alt #2?  Pls provide a caulking specification.  

o Windows will be re-caulked. This shall be part of Alternate No. 
2. Use 1-part polyurethane sealant. 
 

 At seven locations running the depth of the building (50’) there is 1.25” 
angle iron suspended a few feet below the bottom of the bar joists.  In my 
opinion it does not appear to be structural.  I believe it was utilitarian and 
something was hung from it.  In an effort to clean up the structural steel 
and make the ceiling area more airy would you like to have these pieces 
removed?  If not should these be sandblasted and painted? 

o These angles are to remain. Blast and paint.  
 

 Starting at the south west corner of the building floor and traveling up the 
wall and then across the entire width of the building at the bar joist level to 
the eastern wall there are (2) 1” galvanized water lines.  One line travels 
parallel to the second bar joist from the front and the other travels along 
the 4th bar joist.  Would you like to have these water lines removed? 

o Yes, these lines shall be removed.  
 

 On the north east corner of the building there is a piece of ductwork 
extending through the CMU wall.  Would you like this removed and the 
CMU filled in with masonry?  

o Yes, remove the 10”x10” metal duct and install CMU. 
Toothing new CMU to the existing is not required. See photo 
below. 

o  
 On the north elevation of the building there are actually 6 double 

windows.  The plan elevations only show 5. 



  Good eye…thanks for the correction. All 6 windows are equal size 
and included in the Alternate No.2. Please note North Elevation- ALL 
the glass panes at the north elevation (broken- missing-unbroken) 
shall be removed and replaced with 0.60 inch aluminum sheet metal 
panel and glazed in the same manner as replacement glass. Paint the 
panels the same color as the frame. 
 

 On the east elevation the twin window located at the northeast corner is 
missing in its entirety the upper movable sash.  Should bid alternate #2 
include replacing the missing sash? 

o Do not replace sash. Insert aluminum sheet metal for 
replacement of missing sash. Use 0.125 inch aluminum sheet, 
attached with rivets or stainless steel sheet metal screws. 
 

 02-4100  
2.01 A it appears that items 2, 4 and 5 have been completed by others.  Pls 
confirm.  

o Yes- these were completed by a separate contract. 
 

o Item 3 states to only remove ceiling mounted conduits.  Is that 
correct?  All the wall mounted switch gear in the right front corner 
is to stay?  Pls confirm 
 Wall mounted conduit to remain (may reuse for receptacles 
and lighting). The switch gear is to be removed. 
 
08-3613  
Plans show windows in overhead doors, specs do not mention the 
windows.  Which is correct?  
 Drawing is correct. 3 view panels per door as shown on 

2/A1.2. 
 

o Is it your intention that all the switch gear boxes and associated 
wall conduit will be removed during the asbestos abatement?  
 Wall mounted conduit to remain (may reuse for 

receptacles and lighting). The switch gear is to be 
removed. 
 
 

o It appears there is asbestos in the glazing putty.  Once this putty is 
removed from the individual panes of glass should the cost to re-
glaze the unbroken panes of glass be included in the base bid?  I 
understand the alternate pricing regarding the windows but 
something must be done to the unbroken glass panes after 
abatement.  
 All work on the windows are included in Alternate No2. 

Only remove loose glazing putty. Remove for repair and 
replacement purposes and all putty tight to frame can 
remain. Panes of glass that are not broken remain in 
place. 
 
 

 
END OF ADDENDUM No. 1 



 
 
 
 
 

 

Pre‐Bid Meeting Notes

 
April 22, 2014

 

Owner:  City of Lynchburg 

Architect: Architectural Partners, PC 

Project:  Storage Building at Former Allen Morrison Site 

Time: 10:00 

Location: Bidder’s Room, Third Floor at City Hall with site review at job site‐Allen Morrison Building 

Bid Date:  May 8, 2014 at 3:00  

 

The following items were discussed at the Pre‐Bid Meeting on 4‐22‐2014 at 10:00. 

 

1. Introduction and Sign‐in sheet routed. Sign – in sheet is attached. 

 

2. Lisa Moss, Procurement for the City of Lynchburg, discussed and reviewed the front end documents with 

attendees. Major items that were highlighted were the bid date of May 8, 2014 at 3:00. Location as stated 

in  the advertisement  for bids.   Last day  for questions  from bidders  is April 29th at 2:00 pm.   Questions 

must be submitted by either email or fax.  If fax is used, it is requested that the bidder call to confirm that 

fax was received properly. 

 

a) There are  liquidated damages. $150 per day as stated  in the documents and based on 

120 calendar days of construction. 

 

b) It was noted  that  the permit  fees are waived; however,  the  contractor  is  required  to 

apply for the permit and hold the permit. Also noted that  landfill fees are not waived. 

These are paid by the contractor. 

 



2 
 

 

3. Mark discussed the project and alternates that are included. The following items were discussed: 

 

a) Contractor will require temporary power due to no electrical utilities present. 

 

b) Owner will provide water. Contractor is to make connection. Owner will pay for usage of 

water. 

 

c) There  are  2  alternates.  Alternate  #  1  is  the  installation  of  new  overhead  doors  and 

personnel  door.  Alternate  #  2  is  the  restoration  of  windows  and  the  painting  of 

windows. 

 

d) Asbestos  containing materials  are present on  site. These  are  identified  in  the Project 

manual as a report issued by Hurt & Proffitt. 

 

4. The  City  has  cleaned  the  building  and  it  has  completed  some  demolition  required  in  drawing.  (See 

addendum No. 1 for further clarification.) 

 

5. Project involves removal of metal roof deck that has rusted out and replacement of new roof and metal 

roof deck. 

 

a) New roof will be installed on rigid insulation and fully attached with adhesive. 

 

b)  Interior painting of the metal deck, steel roof and beams, columns. Preparation for the 

steel involves abrasive type blasting. 

 

c) Exterior masonry block requires a masonry coating due to weather‐proofing.  

 

d) Terra cotta coping to be replaced and reset in selected locations. 

 

e) There is no new HVAC or electrical work. 
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6. Randy  Dalton  discussed  the  use  of  the  site  as  being  open  and  available  to  the  contractor  with  no 

restrictions.  The interior of the building can be used for storage; however, Randy recommended that the 

contractor secure the building prior to storage use. Randy also stated that he would be the contact person 

between the contractor and the owner.  It was also noted that all work to be performed by the City has 

been completed which included removal of trash from the buildings interior. 

 

7. The group agreed to attend the site walk‐thru. Questions at the Pre‐Bid meeting are noted below.  

 

a) Question:  Do  contractors  have  an  option  to  wet  blast  vs.  abrasive  blast  the  steel? 

Answer: Wet blast is approved. 

b) Question:  Can  the  existing  door  frame  for  the  Personnel  Door  be  re‐used?  Answer: 

Existing frame can be re‐used but will need to be repaired. There are holes drilled into 

the frame. Mortises and coordination of hardware will be required to re‐use this frame; 

however, this is a contractor’s option. It was also noted that the rough opening for this 

door is 40 inches wide and 86.5 inches high. 

c) Question:  Is  removal of  the  glass  required  for preparation of  the metal muntins  and 

frame for painting‐is this required? Answer: Removal of glass for preparation of paint is 

not required.  

d) Question: Is glass to be cleaned? Answer: All glass shall be cleaned. 

e) Question: Are damaged brick and masonry to be repaired? Answer: The only masonry to 

be repaired or replaced is noted on the drawings.  

 
   
 




